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       1                         P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 (Transcript follows in sequence from

       3       Volume 2.)

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  I think we'll get

       5       started.  I'm sure Commissioner Klement will be down

       6       shortly.

       7                 And first, staff, we need to correct -- we

       8       need to enter into the record an exhibit.

       9                 MS. BROOKS:  Yeah.  Staff is -- believes that

      10       we identified Exhibit Number 22 --

      11                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  We didn't move.

      12                 MS. BROOKS:  -- but that it was not moved into

      13       the record.  So we would like to have that done at this

      14       time.

      15                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Do we have a

      16       motion to move Exhibit 22?

      17                 MR. O'ROARK:  Madam Chair, that's our exhibit,

      18       so --

      19                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I'm sorry.

      20                 MR. O'ROARK:  And I thought we had moved it.

      21       But if, if we, if we didn't, I move its admission.

      22                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Move it into the

      23       record.

      24                 (Exhibit 22 admitted into the record.)

      25                 Thank you.  Okay.  We're taking care of
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       1       business.

       2                 MS. BROOKS:  Thank you.

       3                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.

       4                 MR. O'ROARK:  Okay.  We call Paul Vasington.

       5                          PAUL B. VASINGTON

       6       was called as a witness on behalf of Verizon Florida

       7       LLC, and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

       8                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

       9                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Good morning -- or

      10       afternoon.  Excuse me.

      11                 THE WITNESS:  Good afternoon.

      12       BY MR. O'ROARK:  :

      13            Q.   Mr. Vasington, you've been previously sworn?

      14            A.   Yes.

      15            Q.   Will you provide your full name for the

      16       record, please?

      17            A.   My name is Paul B. Vasington.

      18            Q.   And, Mr. Vasington, by whom are you employed

      19       and in what capacity?

      20            A.   I'm employed by Verizon as a Director of State

      21       Public Policy.

      22            Q.   Mr. Vasington, did you cause to be prefiled 27

      23       pages of direct testimony in this case?

      24            A.   Yes.

      25            Q.   Do you have any additions, corrections or
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       1       changes to that testimony?

       2            A.   No.

       3            Q.   Did you cause to be prefiled 26 pages of

       4       rebuttal testimony in this case?

       5            A.   Yes.

       6                 MR. O'ROARK:  And, Madam Chair, I'll note for

       7       the record that Verizon filed a corrected version on

       8       May 6th.

       9       BY MR. O'ROARK:

      10            Q.   Mr. Vasington, do you have any additions,

      11       corrections or changes to your rebuttal testimony?

      12            A.   No, I don't.

      13            Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions today

      14       that appear in your direct and rebuttal testimony, would

      15       your answers be the same?

      16            A.   Yes, they would.

      17                 MR. O'ROARK:  Madam Chair, Verizon moves that

      18       Mr. Vasington's direct and rebuttal testimony be

      19       inserted into the record as if read, subject to

      20       cross-examination.

      21                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I'm sorry.  So moved.

      22       Thank you.

      23

      24

      25
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       1       BY MR. O'ROARK:

       2            Q.   Mr. Vasington, have you prepared a summary of

       3       your testimony?

       4            A.   Yes, I have.

       5            Q.   Will you please give it at this time?

       6            A.   Certainly.

       7                 Good afternoon, Madam Chair and Commissioners.

       8       There are two issues on which I am testifying, Issue 24

       9       and Issue 49.  Both of these issues involve special

      10       access facilities, and on both of these issues Bright

      11       House is asking you to rule in a way that has not been

      12       done before in Florida and to my knowledge has not been

      13       done anywhere in the country.

      14                 Local exchange carriers originate and

      15       terminate calls for long distance companies.  And when

      16       this is done through a switch, it's called switched

      17       access and charged on a per-minute basis.  When it's

      18       done through a direct connection, it's called special

      19       access and it's charged a capacity-based rate for the

      20       facility.

      21                 Carrier access was created for the competitive

      22       long distance industry, so it predated the

      23       Telecommunications Act of 1996.  Access is a wholesale

      24       service, but in the Telecommunications Act the access

      25       regime was preserved distinct from the interconnection
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       1       regime that the Act created.

       2                 In Issue 24, Bright House wants to pay TELRIC

       3       rates where it currently pays special access rates for

       4       facilities used to transport traffic from long distance

       5       companies to Bright House end users.

       6                 In Issue 49, Bright House wants to be able to

       7       resale special access facilities, even though resale is

       8       limited to retail services.  And the FCC has

       9       specifically exempted special access from the resale

      10       requirement.

      11                 In terms of Issue 24, this involves

      12       essentially a legal argument over the classification of

      13       facilities and will be fully briefed by all the parties.

      14                 As an, as an initial matter, it was not clear

      15       until the rebuttal testimony why Bright House presented

      16       this issue for resolution because it owns its own

      17       facilities running from its network to Verizon's.  Only

      18       in Mr. Gates' rebuttal testimony did we learn for the

      19       first time what facilities Bright House is seeking at

      20       TELRIC rates from Verizon, and these are facilities used

      21       for access toll connecting trunks connecting Bright

      22       House's network with the networks of interexchange

      23       carriers.

      24                 The facilities for the access toll connecting

      25       trunks at issue are and always have been provided at
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       1       tariffed rates, not at TELRIC rates.  They have nothing

       2       to do with interconnection between Verizon and Bright

       3       House.  Instead, they enable Bright House to fulfill its

       4       duty to interconnect with long distance companies.

       5                 The special access facilities are not part of

       6       the interconnection regime.  Bright House, like every

       7       other CLEC that buys access toll connecting trunks in

       8       this and every other state, must pay tariffed rates for

       9       these facilities.

      10                 In terms of Issue 49, which is special access

      11       for resale, ILECs have a general obligation to provide

      12       retail services at a wholesale discount to CLECs.  But

      13       here Bright House proposes language that would apply

      14       this wholesale, wholesale discount to special access

      15       services.

      16                 The Commission should reject this language

      17       because the FCC has made clear that ILECs need not offer

      18       special access at a resale discount.  The FCC, in its

      19       local competition order, recognized that end users

      20       occasionally purchase some access services, including

      21       special access services, but concluded that such

      22       occasional use does not require the application of the

      23       wholesale discount.

      24                 In its 2005 triennial review remand order, the

      25       FCC reiterated that it, quote, has explicitly excluded
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       1       special access services from the ambit of the Section

       2       251(c)(4) obligation to offer a wholesale discount.  The

       3       Commission should thus reject Bright House's proposal on

       4       this point.

       5                 And I look forward to any questions you may

       6       have.

       7                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.

       8                 MR. O'ROARK:  Mr. Vasington is available for

       9       cross-examination.

      10                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.

      11                 Mr. Savage.

      12                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      13       BY MR. SAVAGE:

      14            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Vasington.

      15            A.   Good afternoon.

      16            Q.   Where to begin?

      17                 You stated in your opening statement that the

      18       access regime was created prior to the Act.  And you're

      19       referring to the divestiture of the old, breakup of the

      20       old Bell system in 1984 that created a need for access

      21       charges for long distance carriers?

      22            A.   Yeah.  It built on what had been done even

      23       before that with what they called the NFIA tariff.

      24            Q.   But it's a fact, isn't it, that when Congress

      25       passed the 1996 Act, they actually legislated certain
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       1       terms with respect to access service; isn't that right?

       2            A.   They legislated certain terms, my

       3       understanding is, by exempting the, or allowing for the

       4       access charge regime to exist independent of the new

       5       Section 251 interconnection and competition regime.

       6            Q.   Well, let's get there a step at a time.  If

       7       it's okay with you, I'd like to show the witness what

       8       was Munsell deposition Exhibit Number 4, and it's in the

       9       packet that's already been admitted.  But what this

      10       consists of is just some definitions taken directly from

      11       the, the Federal Communications Act.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. O'Roark, do you need

      13       a minute or --

      14                 MR. O'ROARK:  Yeah.  I would like to take a

      15       look at it myself.

      16                 MR. SAVAGE:  Oh.  Sure.  I'm sorry.

      17                 MR. O'ROARK:  We have it.  Thank you.

      18                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

      19       BY MR. SAVAGE:  :

      20            Q.   Now, Mr. Vasington, could you please read into

      21       the record the first definition on that page listed

      22       Number 16?

      23            A.   Sixteen, exchange access.  "The term exchange

      24       access means the offering of access to telephone

      25       exchange services or facilities for the purpose of the
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       1       origination or termination of telephone toll services."

       2            Q.   Would you agree with me that that definition

       3       was added to the Communications Act for the very first

       4       time as part of the 1996 Act, if you know?

       5            A.   I don't know.

       6            Q.   Would it surprise you to learn that that was

       7       the first place and the first time that the

       8       Communications Act actually contained a definition of

       9       access?

      10            A.   No.  Because there wasn't significant

      11       modification to the Communications Act since 1934, and

      12       the access regime in any form started after that point.

      13            Q.   Now you did testify that you thought that

      14       somewhere in the law there was something to preserve the

      15       access regime or words to that effect.  Do you remember

      16       that?

      17            A.   Yes.

      18            Q.   What are you talking about?

      19            A.   My understanding and my experience has been

      20       that the switched access and special access regime of

      21       how these were priced or provided was not taken into the

      22       interconnection regime that was first created in the

      23       Act.

      24            Q.   And are you aware of any specific piece of

      25       legislation, any provision in the law that supposedly
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       1       has that effect?

       2            A.   I don't have the law with me here, but it's my

       3       understanding that there is a part of the Act that does

       4       that.

       5            Q.   Would you accept, subject to check, that that

       6       preservation relates entirely to exchange access as

       7       defined there on Number 16?

       8            A.   Would I accept, subject to check, what you

       9       just said?

      10            Q.   Yes.

      11            A.   Sure.

      12            Q.   Okay.  What are special access circuits used

      13       for?

      14            A.   My general understanding is that special

      15       access circuits are used for the same thing that

      16       switched access is used for, the origination or

      17       termination of long distance traffic.  And whether,

      18       whether a long distance company does it using special

      19       access facilities or switched access facilities depends

      20       on traffic volumes or other considerations.

      21            Q.   So at a high level, if I'm a long distance

      22       company and I have a little bit of traffic going to some

      23       end office, I'll do switched access and run it through

      24       the, to a particular customer, I'll use switched access

      25       to reach that customer.  But if I have, for example, a
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       1       very large business customer with enormous volumes, I

       2       may build a link directly from that customer premises to

       3       my long distance network, and that would be special

       4       access.

       5            A.   Yeah.  I'm not sure if those are the only

       6       considerations that someone would take into account.

       7       But at a very high level, that sounds reasonable.

       8            Q.   If I'm a business and I need to connect to a

       9       computer facility in one location with a computer

      10       facility in another location simply to exchange data

      11       between my computers, would you agree with me that I

      12       would buy a special access service to perform that

      13       function?

      14            A.   I don't know if you would or not.  You'd have

      15       to know a lot more about that, about that company.  It

      16       has a lot of different options.  One option would be to

      17       self provision facilities.  Another is to buy from an

      18       ILEC or another telecom provider.  And whether or not

      19       that's bought as a special access facility or something

      20       else I think is a function of the particular tariffs at

      21       play in whatever jurisdiction you're discussing.

      22            Q.   Suppose I'm a bank in Tampa with five

      23       locations and I want to link my computers in those

      24       locations together, and for some reason I'm going to buy

      25       that service from Verizon, would you agree with me that
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       1       the service that I would buy from Verizon to link my

       2       computers together would be special access circuits

       3       between those facilities?

       4            A.   My understanding is that the private line

       5       tariff for Verizon in Florida refers to the special

       6       access tariff, so that a customer who wanted to buy

       7       those facilities from Verizon would be buying them out

       8       of the special access tariff.

       9            Q.   And would you agree with me that if I am a

      10       bank buying facilities from Verizon to link my computers

      11       together, that that has nothing to do with the

      12       origination or termination of telephone toll service?

      13            A.   I don't know.  It doesn't have to.  Does it

      14       mean that your, your traffic is exclusively between your

      15       two locations?  I'm not sure.  I think that's up to that

      16       customer.

      17            Q.   What I was asking you to assume is that the

      18       traffic was entirely data traffic between my various

      19       computer locations.  On that assumption, you would agree

      20       with me, would you not, that that has nothing to do with

      21       the origination or termination of telephone toll

      22       service?

      23            A.   Under the conditions you've described, yes.

      24            Q.   Now the issue of resale at a, at a discounted

      25       rate, that's an obligation that rests only with ILECs;
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       1       isn't that correct?

       2            A.   As long as you say at a discounted rate.  Yes.

       3            Q.   Right.  All -- I mean, just to lay it out,

       4       Section 251(b)(1) of the Act says that all LECs have to

       5       offer their services for resale without restriction --

       6       well, unreasonable restrictions.  But it's only Section

       7       251(c)(4) that requires ILECs to offer their retail

       8       services at a discounted rate; is that correct?

       9            A.   That's my understanding.

      10            Q.   What's your understanding of the policy goal

      11       that that section is intended to accomplish?

      12            A.   I don't think Congress laid out policy goals

      13       by section.  The overall policy goal of the

      14       Telecommunications Act of 1996 was to promote the

      15       deployment of advanced services through competitive

      16       markets.

      17            Q.   Do you have any understanding of the policy

      18       goal that Congress was intending to accomplish by

      19       including that section?  I mean, they could have just

      20       taken it out; right?

      21            A.   I don't think Congress had policy goals by

      22       section.  I mean, the Act was passed with a preamble

      23       that laid out the policy goal for the entire Act.  Every

      24       section of the Act was intended to achieve those, those

      25       goals.
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       1            Q.   And do you have any opinion or understanding

       2       as to how and whether Section 251(c)(4) requiring

       3       discounted resale of ILEC retail services advances the

       4       policy goals of the '96 Act?

       5            A.   Yes.  My general opinion is that that allowed

       6       for one avenue of local exchange competition, which was

       7       resale.  That promoted one avenue.

       8            Q.   And how does allowing resale promote the

       9       deployment of advanced services and competition?

      10            A.   Because it promotes competition, and

      11       competition was, is one way to promote the efficient

      12       deployment of advanced services.

      13            Q.   Now are you familiar with the requirements of

      14       Section 251(c)(2) of the Act, which is the general

      15       interconnection obligation on ILECs?

      16            A.   I'm familiar with the Act.  If you're going to

      17       ask me which particular section means what, off the top

      18       of my head, I don't know.

      19            Q.   Well, Section --

      20            A.   I didn't bring an Act with me.

      21            Q.   Okay.  Well, Section 251(c)(2) is the part

      22       that says, "CLECs are entitled to interconnect at any

      23       technically feasible point for the transmission and

      24       routing of telephone exchange service and exchange

      25       access."
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       1                 Will you accept, subject to check, that that's

       2       what that law requires?

       3            A.   Okay.

       4            Q.   Yes, you will accept that, subject to check?

       5            A.   Yes.

       6            Q.   Okay.  Great.  Do you have a copy of the

       7       little chart?

       8            A.   I do.  It's a big chart.

       9            Q.   Yeah.  A little copy of the big chart.

      10            A.   A little copy of the big chart.  Yes.

      11            Q.   All right.  So let's picture a call that's

      12       coming inbound from the world to an IXC eventually

      13       making its way over to Bright House, the CLEC.  And

      14       let's assume that it hits the IXC, goes to Verizon's

      15       tandem switch, goes over one of the dark lines to the

      16       end office collo, and then back to Bright House.  Do you

      17       see what call path I'm describing?

      18            A.   Yes.

      19            Q.   Would you agree with me that that is exchange

      20       access traffic?

      21            A.   It's not a generic term.  Exchange access

      22       traffic in the context of specific facilities or

      23       specific services has a direct legal meaning, and I

      24       think that I'm better off not trying to give a legal

      25       opinion about how that term relates to specific
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       1       facilities or services within the context of this case.

       2            Q.   So to the extent that your testimony purports

       3       to advise the Commission as to how it should interpret

       4       the Act as it relates to these facilities in light of

       5       the exchange access requirement, that testimony should

       6       be disregarded because it's not legal?

       7            A.   Well, first of all, my testimony on Issue 24,

       8       which is what this relates to, was not directly related

       9       to these particular facilities because, as I said in my

      10       opening statement, it wasn't clear to us until we

      11       received Mr. Gates' rebuttal testimony exactly what

      12       you're talking about.

      13                 In his, in his direct testimony, he said, we

      14       have no disagreement about our current facilities.  It's

      15       only whether we do something in the future that might

      16       affect this that we have any dispute.  And I was

      17       addressing that in my, in my rebuttal testimony.

      18                 When his rebuttal testimony came out, it was

      19       something different.  Now he's saying, no, we've been

      20       mistakenly paying special access rates for some current

      21       facilities in, in the current arrangement.

      22                 So on the specific question of exchange access

      23       and how it relates to these facilities, I don't think

      24       you'll find much in my testimony on that direct point

      25       because it didn't come up until after I didn't have an
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       1       opportunity to file testimony.

       2            Q.   A lot to unpack there.

       3                 But my first question is, would you -- when I

       4       asked you would you agree that this is exchange access

       5       traffic that comes through the IXCs and travels on these

       6       facilities, is it a fair characterization of your

       7       testimony, I don't know, that's a legal question, I

       8       can't say?  Is that what you're saying today?

       9            A.   No, I don't think that's what you asked me.

      10            Q.   Then let me ask you, is that exchange access

      11       traffic?

      12            A.   Exchange access traffic is the long distance

      13       traffic.  But whether that means that exchange access,

      14       that these facilities are used for exchange access is a

      15       different question.

      16                 So to the first question, exchange access is

      17       long distance traffic traveling from the IXC to be

      18       originated or terminated by the, by the local exchange

      19       carrier.

      20            Q.   Okay.  So we agree that it is exchange access

      21       traffic.  You're just not -- you're saying some other

      22       stuff about what it might mean for this case?

      23            A.   It's exchange access traffic coming to the

      24       IXCs.  From what it means to this case beyond that,

      25       that's a legal question.
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       1            Q.   Okay.  So we agree it's exchange access

       2       traffic.  You just don't want to commit to what it means

       3       for this case.  Is that -- I'm just trying to --

       4                 MR. O'ROARK:  I object to the question.  That

       5       mischaracterizes his testimony.

       6                 MR. SAVAGE:  Well, that's why I'm -- I'm not

       7       trying to mischaracterize it.  I'm trying to get it

       8       clear.

       9       BY MR. SAVAGE:

      10            Q.   Do we agree that this is exchange access

      11       traffic?

      12            A.   The chart is showing facilities, the chart is

      13       not showing traffic.  There is exchange access traffic

      14       that goes to IXCs, and that then comes into this network

      15       diagram which shows facilities.  So I'm saying nothing

      16       about what these facilities show.  I am saying that

      17       there is exchange access traffic that goes to IXCs and

      18       then is terminated to Bright House end user customers.

      19            Q.   And that exchange access traffic flows over

      20       these facilities; isn't that correct?

      21            A.   In some form or other in order to get from the

      22       top box IXCs down to what's represented as a cloud here,

      23       end user customers, long distance traffic has to go from

      24       that top box down to that cloud picture.

      25            Q.   And you're saying long distance traffic, and
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       1       that's not my question.  We can agree that it's long

       2       distance because it starts far away.  As you understand

       3       the term "exchange access" as used throughout your

       4       testimony and in various places in this case, would you

       5       agree with me that it is exchange access traffic that

       6       once it hits Verizon's network goes off to the Verizon

       7       end office on to the fiber ring and down to us?

       8                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Vasington, can you

       9       answer that question?

      10                 THE WITNESS:  Until the point where he's

      11       pointing to specific facilities on the chart and saying

      12       this is how it transits on the, on the chart, no.  Is it

      13       exchange access traffic that goes from IXCs down to

      14       Bright House end user customers?  Yes.

      15       BY MR. SAVAGE:

      16            Q.   Okay.  So assuming that that traffic flows

      17       over the dark lines and then over the little arrows, on

      18       that assumption, then indeed exchange access traffic

      19       would flow over those facilities; correct?

      20            A.   That was the part I was saying I'm not sure

      21       how that traffic goes, you know, which facilities it

      22       goes over in every circumstance.

      23            Q.   Right.  And so I'm asking you to assume.  If

      24       you assume with me that the record outside of your

      25       testimony establishes that this IXC traffic flows over
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       1       those facilities down to Bright House, that it is indeed

       2       exchange access traffic that is flowing over those

       3       facilities down to Bright House.

       4            A.   You've got to slow down.  You had a lot of

       5       pieces in there.  I think the very first thing you said

       6       was that I assume that in my testimony this is how it

       7       works.  Did you start with that?

       8            Q.   No.  What I -- I'll start over again.

       9                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Let's, let's do a really

      10       specific question and a specific answer, if you can.  If

      11       you can't --

      12                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.  He's asking a lot of

      13       piece parts, Madam Chair.

      14                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  So I'm trying to keep, keep in

      16       my head all the various pieces.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I understand.

      18                 Mr. Savage, can you ask a specific question?

      19                 MR. SAVAGE:  I will try to be as specific as

      20       possible.

      21       BY MR. SAVAGE:

      22            Q.   One, assume that other testimony in the case

      23       establishes that the traffic that comes out of the IXCs

      24       goes through Verizon's tandem, over these, the dark line

      25       facilities, to the collocation and then onward to Bright
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       1       House's network.  Do you understand that assumption?

       2            A.   Yes.

       3            Q.   On that assumption, would you agree with me

       4       that the access toll connecting trunk facilities that

       5       are the dark line on the chart carry exchange access

       6       traffic?

       7            A.   Under those two assumptions, yes.

       8            Q.   Great.  Are you aware of anything in the '96

       9       Act that would say when we're talking about this kind of

      10       exchange access traffic as compared to some other kind

      11       maybe, when we're talking about this kind of exchange

      12       access traffic, the Section 251(c)(2), right of CLECs to

      13       interconnect for the transmission and routing of

      14       exchange access traffic, would not apply?

      15            A.   I think you're asking me for a legal opinion.

      16            Q.   Well, I tried to follow the format we adopted

      17       this morning, which is whether you were aware of

      18       anything in the '96 Act or FCC rulings that would exempt

      19       this kind of traffic, this kind of exchange access

      20       traffic from the interconnection obligations established

      21       in 251(c)(2).  If you're not aware of anything, a no

      22       answer is perfectly appropriate.

      23            A.   Well, I'm aware that it is not done that way

      24       now and I'm aware that it is not done that way anywhere

      25       else that way.  Can I point to a specific rule or a
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       1       specific provision?  No, I can't.  But I'm aware that it

       2       is not currently provided at TELRIC rates, that the

       3       facilities we're describing for the purposes we're

       4       describing are provided as special access facilities at

       5       tariffed special access rates.

       6            Q.   So if I can parse that properly, the answer to

       7       my question is, no, you're not aware of anything in the

       8       Act that would exempt this.  And then your addendum is,

       9       but it hasn't been applied this way before, to your

      10       knowledge.  Is that a fair summary of what you just

      11       said?

      12            A.   Sort of.  All of the people who have made

      13       these decisions, the way this has been done here and

      14       everywhere else, have, have either blessed or

      15       specifically made this arrangement to be consistent with

      16       the requirements of the Act.  So the fact that this is

      17       the way it is currently done and has always been done

      18       suggests to me strongly that it is, that it is

      19       consistent with the provisions of the Act.

      20                 If you're asking me to point to where somebody

      21       specifically cited a statement or a section, I can't do

      22       that.  But I do know that this is the way everybody else

      23       and this -- this state and every other state, that this

      24       is how these facilities are priced as special access

      25       facilities.
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       1                 (Technical difficulties with microphone.)

       2                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  And if, and if we could,

       3       just for specific's sake, if, if you can't answer a

       4       question yes or no, it may -- sometimes questions can't

       5       be answered yes or no -- you might want to indicate

       6       that.  And then if you would like to ask an additional

       7       question, then you probably should go forward from

       8       there.

       9                 MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.  That's fine.  Sorry about

      10       the mike, whatever was wrong with it.  I'm sure I did

      11       something.

      12       BY MR. SAVAGE:  :

      13            Q.   Okay.  Are you aware of what the Act provides

      14       with respect to Commission review of terms on which

      15       parties agree?

      16            A.   For a negotiated interconnection agreement?

      17            Q.   Or a negotiated portion of an interconnection

      18       agreement.

      19            A.   I'm aware that there are time frames.  That

      20       was a big part of my life at one point as a

      21       Commissioner.  I don't remember what the specific

      22       provisions are.

      23            Q.   Would you agree with me that under Section

      24       252(a)(1) of the Act an ILEC and a CLEC are permitted to

      25       agree to terms without regard to the specific
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       1       requirements of Section 251 as long as it's okay with

       2       the two of them?

       3            A.   That's consistent with my general

       4       understanding.  Yes.

       5            Q.   And are you -- would you agree with me that

       6       under Section 252(c)(3) of the Act, maybe (2), 252(c) of

       7       the Act -- I'm sorry, I apologize -- 252(e) of the Act,

       8       when a state commission approves a negotiated agreement,

       9       it is not required to pass on whether the specific

      10       negotiated terms meet or do not meet the specific

      11       requirements of the Act?

      12            A.   That provision sounds familiar.  I don't

      13       remember exactly if you're correct on your citation of

      14       the section, but I'd be willing to take that, subject to

      15       check.

      16            Q.   Okay.  So to the extent that this particular

      17       facility's arrangement and the pricing of it has not

      18       been competitively or economically significant to most

      19       CLECs in most places, wouldn't you agree with me that an

      20       ILEC and a CLEC may have simply agreed to something that

      21       makes sense in the short run because it isn't

      22       economically significant to the CLEC irrespective of

      23       what the Act actually requires if you bear down on it?

      24            A.   I think you started out with the fact that it

      25       is not competitively or economically significant, and
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       1       I'm not sure I can agree with, with that.  The pricing

       2       of access, whether it's special access or switched

       3       access, is not a small matter in the telecommunications

       4       industry and never has been.  So the notion that CLECs

       5       are paying special access rates for a facility not being

       6       economically significant, I can't just accept that as a

       7       premise.

       8            Q.   I will grant you that as a general proposition

       9       CLECs and a lot of people in the industry are very

      10       concerned with special access pricing.  Would you agree

      11       with me that it is not a common CLEC arrangement to use

      12       special access facilities between a collocation and a

      13       tandem office to handle exchange access traffic from

      14       IXCs?

      15            A.   I don't know.

      16            Q.   Okay.  Okay.  With respect to this question of

      17       when you learned about this -- or when we learned, I

      18       think you said -- I know Verizon is a big company, but

      19       have you had any role whatsoever in the actual

      20       negotiation of the terms of the agreement between

      21       Verizon and Bright House?

      22            A.   No.

      23            Q.   Do you have any direct knowledge of

      24       conversations that may have occurred between Verizon

      25       negotiators and Bright House negotiators about the
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       1       various issues?

       2            A.   No.

       3            Q.   So sitting here today, you have no idea when

       4       Verizon's negotiator may or may not have come to

       5       understand Bright House's proposals and concerns with

       6       respect to these special access facilities; isn't that

       7       right?

       8            A.   I'm sorry.  I got lost.  Try that again.

       9            Q.   Sitting here today, you have no idea, do you,

      10       when Verizon's negotiator may have become aware of

      11       Bright House's specific concerns with regard to the

      12       pricing of these special access facilities we're talking

      13       about and the legal arguments surrounding that pricing?

      14            A.   I have not talked to the Verizon negotiator

      15       about any of these issues directly, so I have no

      16       knowledge of when he or she or whether it's a team even,

      17       when they became knowledgeable about any of these

      18       issues.

      19            Q.   So when you testify that we only learned about

      20       this argument or that argument in Mr. Gates' rebuttal

      21       testimony, what you're really saying is you didn't see

      22       it in his direct testimony.  You're not talking about

      23       all of Verizon's knowledge in the conduct of this

      24       negotiation and discussion, are you?

      25            A.   No.  I'm working with counsel to develop my
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       1       testimony consistent with mine and their understanding

       2       of, of the issues and the positions, and my statement

       3       was based on that.

       4                 MR. SAVAGE:  I have nothing further for this

       5       witness.

       6                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. O'Roark, redirect?

       7                 MR. O'ROARK:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

       8                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

       9       BY MR. O'ROARK:

      10            Q.   Mr. Vasington, Bright House has suggested that

      11       facilities-based interconnection of the kind we're

      12       talking about today is something new.  Is it?

      13            A.   No, it is not.  There have been other

      14       facilities-based providers interconnecting for more than

      15       ten years.

      16            Q.   Does the IXC traffic that you and counsel were

      17       discussing involve the exchange of traffic between

      18       Bright House and Verizon customers?

      19            A.   No, it does not.  It's, it's traffic that the

      20       IXCs are sending to Bright House customers.  It's not

      21       the exchange of traffic between Verizon and Bright

      22       House.

      23            Q.   Historically in the industry how have carriers

      24       obtained the facilities from an ILEC going from the

      25       tandem switch to the end office collo shown in the
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       1       diagram we've been talking about?

       2            A.   My understanding is that those are special

       3       access facilities.

       4            Q.   And can you give us some of the historic

       5       backdrop to that?

       6            A.   Yeah.  As I mentioned, the access regime, the

       7       provision of access predated the Telecom Act because

       8       there was long distance competition before there was the

       9       Telecom Act for local exchange competition.  So prior to

      10       the Act itself, there was switched access and special

      11       access facilities.  And the connections from the IXCs to

      12       the local exchange were provided over special access

      13       facilities or through the provision of switched access.

      14            Q.   Did that change after the Telecom Act?

      15            A.   No, it did not.

      16            Q.   When I say change, did it change sort of in

      17       the industry as a practical matter in your experience

      18       and involvement in the telecommunications industry?

      19            A.   That's correct.  That's why I described it

      20       earlier as having been preserved as a distinct regime,

      21       not replaced by the interconnection regime but working

      22       in concert with the interconnection regime.

      23            Q.   You and Mr. Savage talked about exchange

      24       access.  Are you here testifying as a lawyer?

      25            A.   No.
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       1            Q.   Are you familiar with all the legal nuances

       2       and ins and outs of what may be and what may not be

       3       exchange access traffic?

       4            A.   No.  Shakespeare called those the quillities

       5       and quiddits, and those are things that I'm not familiar

       6       with.

       7            Q.   So when it comes to what may be and what may

       8       not be exchange access traffic, is it fair to say that

       9       you would defer to Verizon's lawyers in briefing?

      10            A.   Absolutely.

      11                 MR. O'ROARK:  No further questions.  Thank

      12       you.

      13                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Staff?

      14                 MS. BROOKS:  Staff has no questions.

      15                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Commissioners?

      16       Commissioner Skop.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

      18                 Good afternoon, Mr. Vasington.

      19                 THE WITNESS:  Good afternoon.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Savage asked a

      21       question where he had asked you to point to the Act to

      22       ascertain what pricing model might apply to exchange

      23       access traffic.  Do you remember that question

      24       generally?

      25                 THE WITNESS:  Generally.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And I think your

       2       response was that you couldn't point to a specific

       3       provision of the Act, but that industry custom typically

       4       favors special access rate versus the TELRIC rate; is

       5       that correct?  Can you explain that a little bit?

       6                 THE WITNESS:  Well, I can't, I can't point to

       7       chapter and verse, but I think it's more than just

       8       custom.  I think it's been the findings and application

       9       of the legal requirements done by all, by every

      10       commission that these are provided as special access

      11       facilities and priced as tariffed special access rates.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.  Thank

      13       you.

      14                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I think that's it for

      15       Mr. Vasington.  Thank you.

      16                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Do you have any

      18       exhibits?  Anybody?

      19                 MR. SAVAGE:  We did not, Madam Chair.

      20                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Good.  Thank you,

      21       Mr. Vasington.

      22                 Our next witness is Peter D'Amico.  Welcome.

      23                           PETER J. D'AMICO

      24       was called as a witness on behalf of Verizon Florida

      25       LLC, and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:
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       1                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

       2       BY MR. O'ROARK:  :

       3            Q.   Mr. D'Amico, have you been previously sworn?

       4            A.   Yes.

       5            Q.   Will you provide your full name for the

       6       record, please?

       7            A.   Peter J. D'Amico.

       8            Q.   Mr. D'Amico, by whom are you employed and in

       9       what capacity?

      10            A.   I'm a Product Manager with Verizon.

      11            Q.   Did you cause to be prefiled 16 pages of

      12       direct testimony in this case?

      13            A.   Yes.

      14            Q.   Do you have any additions, corrections or

      15       changes to that testimony?

      16            A.   No, I do not.

      17            Q.   Did you cause to be prefiled 15 pages of

      18       rebuttal testimony on April 16th?

      19            A.   Yes.

      20            Q.   Do you have any additions, corrections or

      21       changes to that testimony?

      22            A.   No, I do not.

      23                 MR. O'ROARK:  And, Madam Chair, for the

      24       record, initially there was some information marked as

      25       confidential, I believe, in the rebuttal testimony of
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       1       Mr. D'Amico.  The parties have since conferred.  Bright

       2       House has confirmed that that information was not

       3       confidential and we have subsequently filed a

       4       nonconfidential version.  I believe that was on -- it

       5       was dated May 12th.

       6       BY MR. O'ROARK:

       7            Q.   Mr. D'Amico, if I were to ask the same

       8       questions today that appear in your direct and rebuttal

       9       testimony, would your answers be the same?

      10            A.   Yes.

      11                 MR. O'ROARK:  Madam Chair, Verizon moves that

      12       Mr. D'Amico's direct and rebuttal testimony be inserted

      13       into the record, subject to cross-examination.

      14                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  So moved.  Thank you.

      15

      16

      17
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      25
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       1       BY MR. O'ROARK:  :

       2            Q.   Mr. D'Amico, have you prepared a summary of

       3       your testimony?

       4            A.   Yes.

       5            Q.   Will you provide it at this time, please?

       6            A.   Sure.  Good afternoon, Madam Chair and

       7       Commissioners.  My prefiled testimony addresses a number

       8       of issues, all of which have been resolved except for

       9       Issue 32.  Issue 32 addresses whether Bright House may

      10       require Verizon to accept its trunking at the DS3 level

      11       or above.

      12                 As background, a DS3, I'm sorry, a DS1 level

      13       circuit can carry up to 24 voice grade trunks.  A DS3

      14       level circuit has a higher capacity and can carry up to

      15       28 DS1 circuits or, in other words, 672 trunks.  The DS1

      16       circuits are said to ride the DS3.

      17                 Bright House delivers traffic from its switch

      18       to its three collocation spaces at Verizon end offices

      19       and tandem office.  Bright House then multiplexes the

      20       traffic, which means it converts the DS3 circuits to the

      21       DS1 level before handing the traffic off to Verizon.

      22       Bright House is now requesting to hand off to Verizon at

      23       the DS3 level so it can force Verizon to do the

      24       multiplexing.

      25                 Before I get into the merits of this dispute,
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       1       I should note that this issue has been settled with

       2       respect to the parties' current arrangement for network

       3       interconnection.  Those settlement terms apply as long

       4       as the parties' physical network arrangements do not

       5       materially change.  Bright House has not made a specific

       6       proposal for changing the current network configuration,

       7       so thus far we don't have anything concrete to evaluate.

       8       That is reason alone to reject Bright House's proposed

       9       language.

      10                 The Commission should not make a blanket

      11       decision about the treatment of multiplexing under a

      12       potential future interconnection arrangement that Bright

      13       House has not identified and may or may not implement,

      14       especially because those decisions may affect Verizon's

      15       relationship with other carriers who adopt the

      16       agreement, even if they never affect Verizon's

      17       arrangement with Bright House.

      18                 Moreover, Bright House should not receive

      19       dedicated multiplexing for free.  Bright House claims

      20       that the need to convert traffic to the DS1 level

      21       somehow shows that Verizon has an obsolete network, but

      22       that is not the case.  Verizon's tandem switches have

      23       high capacity interfaces, but for technical and network

      24       management reasons traffic must be delivered to those

      25       switches at the DS1 level.  Verizon's end office
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       1       switches have DS1 ports which are still manufactured and

       2       in common use today.  As a practical matter, Bright

       3       House does not send enough traffic to any of its

       4       collocations to any single Verizon end office to justify

       5       dedicated DS3 circuits, so the traffic needs to be

       6       converted to the DS1 level before it is routed over

       7       Verizon's interoffice transport facilities.

       8                 And contrary to Bright House's prefiled

       9       testimony, multiplexing traffic does not slow it down or

      10       otherwise affect the quality of transmission as Bright

      11       House has since admitted.  Verizon handles its own

      12       retail traffic in the same manner as it does for Bright

      13       House and other carriers.  Verizon multiplexes its

      14       traffic to the DS1 level before routing it to its tandem

      15       and end office switches.  Verizon pays for multiplexing

      16       by purchasing the necessary equipment.  A CLEC like

      17       Bright House can either compensate Verizon for

      18       multiplexing equipment dedicated to the CLEC's use or it

      19       can use its own equipment.  The CLEC should not be

      20       allowed to shift the costs of multiplexing its traffic

      21       to Verizon.  That concludes my summary.  Thank you.

      22                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.

      23                 MR. O'ROARK:  Mr. Vasington (sic.) is

      24       available for cross-examination.

      25                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Savage.
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       1                 MR. O'ROARK:  Did I say Vasington?

       2                 THE WITNESS:  You did.

       3                 MR. O'ROARK:  I'm sorry.  It's late in the

       4       day.  Mr. D'Amico is available for cross-examination.

       5                 MR. SAVAGE:  I'm happy to talk to

       6       Mr. Vasington some more, if you want.

       7                 MR. O'ROARK:  He's still available for

       8       cross-examination.

       9                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      10       BY MR. SAVAGE:  :

      11            Q.   Okay.  Good afternoon, Mr. D'Amico.

      12            A.   Good afternoon.

      13            Q.   I want to try to sort out the difference, if

      14       you will, between what's technically doable on the one

      15       hand and who should pay for what on the other hand.

      16                 You would agree with me that there are certain

      17       switches in Verizon's network that have a DS3 input

      18       port?

      19            A.   I believe our two tandems have -- I don't know

      20       if it's a DS3, it's an OC interface, but the actual

      21       input into those switches is at the DS1 level.

      22            Q.   Right.  Now I understand that once you get

      23       into the guts of the switch it may happen at the DS1

      24       level, but in terms of what you plug into that switch --

      25       you have switches that can take in effect a plug in of
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       1       an OC12 or an OC whatever, and then interior to the

       2       switch it breaks it down to the lower levels if it wants

       3       to.

       4            A.   Again, none of our end offices have that

       5       ability.  The only exception would be our two tandem

       6       switches, and that would be more of an internal Verizon

       7       infrastructure.  I don't believe any carriers, either

       8       CLECs, wireless carriers, interexchange carriers, have

       9       the ability to interface at a DS3 level right into the

      10       switch.

      11            Q.   I'm asking maybe a simpler question than

      12       you're answering.  If I have a DS3 full of 28 DS1s, you

      13       would agree with me that Verizon has equipment that it

      14       owns today that could accept that DS3 input and then

      15       break it down into the DS1s or however it wanted to

      16       break it down.  Verizon owns such equipment today.

      17            A.   That's called a 3-to-1 multiplexer.

      18            Q.   Right.  And by the same token, Verizon owns

      19       equipment that could accept an OC3 or an OC12 or an OC48

      20       input into Verizon's network and then could do whatever

      21       it wanted with them to break it down into DS1s.

      22            A.   At a facility level, yes.

      23            Q.   Okay.

      24            A.   I thought your question was dealing

      25       specifically with into the specific switches.
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       1            Q.   No.  Maybe I asked it wrong.  But just to be

       2       clear, there's no technical obstacle to a company like

       3       Verizon accepting input at a DS3 level, an OC12 level,

       4       an OC192 level, as the, as the direct interface between

       5       its network and another network.  Whether that would

       6       involve multiplexing or demultiplexing beyond that

       7       interface point is a separate question; right?

       8            A.   At a facility level, correct.

       9            Q.   Okay.  Now I'd like to hand the witness what

      10       is a single page from something that's already in the

      11       record.  It's, it's what I had to read earlier today.

      12       It's the page of the contract where, that shows Bright

      13       House's proposed change that relates to this specific

      14       issue.  And I've got some copies, courtesy of the staff,

      15       we can share with the Commission and with the witness.

      16            A.   Thank you.

      17            Q.   And for the record, this is Page 69 of 152 of

      18       Exhibit TJG-3, which came in as an attachment to

      19       Mr. Gates' direct.

      20                 And I'd like to direct your attention to

      21       Section 2.4.6, which shows the proposed changes.

      22            A.   Okay.

      23            Q.   And you understand this is the, if you will,

      24       the disputed contract language surrounding Issue Number

      25       32; is that right?
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       1            A.   Yes.

       2            Q.   Okay.

       3            A.   Part of it.

       4            Q.   Part of it.  Right.  There may be more.  But

       5       looking at this in particular, do you understand Bright

       6       House to be asking for the right to demand

       7       interconnection at the DS3 level or an OC12 level or an

       8       OC48 level regardless of the amount of traffic the

       9       parties exchange?

      10            A.   That may have been indicated in some of the

      11       previous testimony, that basically, paraphrasing,

      12       Verizon's network is obsolete and everything should be

      13       exchanged at a minimum of a DS3 level or higher.  I

      14       remember reading that.

      15            Q.   The, I mean, the testimony may be what it is,

      16       but looking at this specific language, what we're

      17       actually proposing to include in the contract, do you

      18       see anything about this language that suggests that we

      19       would have the right to demand an OC48 level

      20       interconnection if traffic levels didn't warrant that

      21       level of interconnection?

      22                 MR. O'ROARK:  I'm going to object to the

      23       extent that it calls for a legal conclusion.  The

      24       witness is being shown contract language that he's only

      25       recently seen.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Savage.

       2                 MR. SAVAGE:  Are you stipulating that his

       3       testimony about this issue was not based on any review

       4       of this contract language?

       5                 MR. O'ROARK:  I'm not stipulating anything.

       6                 MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.

       7                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  We have an objection.

       8                 MR. O'ROARK:  My objection stands.

       9                 MR. SAVAGE:  Well, okay.  I think asking, if I

      10       can respond, asking this witness to respond to the

      11       contract language that relates to the issue that is the

      12       only issue his testimony addresses is perfectly

      13       appropriate.  And if he can't answer because it goes

      14       beyond his capacity, he can say so.

      15                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Ms. Helton?

      16                 MS. HELTON:  Madam Chairman, if I could have a

      17       minute to look and see what Issue 32 actually says, that

      18       might help me some.

      19                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Let's take like four or

      20       five minutes.

      21                 (Recess taken.)

      22                 Okay.  We're back on.

      23                 MR. O'ROARK:  Madam Chair, Verizon, in the

      24       interest of moving things along, will withdraw the

      25       objection.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  The objection is

       2       withdrawn.

       3                 Mr. Savage.

       4       BY MR. SAVAGE:

       5            Q.   So the question that I think drew the

       6       objection or one like it was can you see anything in

       7       Section 2.4.6 on the page in front of you that would

       8       suggest that Bright House could demand an OC48 or some

       9       high interconnection level if traffic levels did not

      10       justify the higher connection?

      11            A.   Well, of course, speaking from my

      12       understanding, and legally somebody could interpret this

      13       language differently, a couple of things jump out at me

      14       when I, when I read this.  One thing is as traffic

      15       levels dictate, and to me that's a little vague, but it

      16       does imply that, that it would be based on traffic

      17       levels.

      18                 But something that is even more important to

      19       me at least in looking at this is it says trunking at

      20       the DS3 level or above.  So when you're talking

      21       trunking, regardless of the traffic level, Verizon

      22       doesn't have the ability to have the, the trunking into

      23       our switches at a DS3 level.  It can only at this point

      24       interface trunking at the DS1 level.  So regardless of,

      25       you know, the traffic level, let's just say that there
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       1       was a zillion minutes, Verizon doesn't have the ability

       2       to have the trunking into its switches at a DS1 level.

       3            Q.   Let me see if I follow you, make sure I get

       4       what you're saying.  Drawing the distinction between

       5       facilities, the physical things that carry traffic and

       6       then trunking, which is sort of how the traffic is

       7       organized within those facilities, is that a fair sort

       8       of a high level description of the difference?

       9            A.   I would also add the trunking is, is the

      10       actual paths between the two switches.

      11            Q.   Okay.  And what you're saying, if I

      12       understand, is Verizon certainly has today the technical

      13       capability to interface at a facilities level at a DS3,

      14       OC12, whatever, Verizon is a sophisticated company with

      15       a lot of big equipment, but that today Verizon's

      16       switches are configured so that the ports into those

      17       switches are all at the DS1 level, with the few

      18       exceptions we talked about?

      19            A.   Correct.

      20            Q.   Okay.  So -- and I guess you'd agree with me

      21       that while it's technically possible for Verizon to

      22       actually spend money to change its switches in some way

      23       to add a DS3 port or potentially even change out a

      24       switch, you could do that but it would be really

      25       expensive and you don't want to unless there's a really
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       1       important reason; is that fair?

       2            A.   I've been told with an emphasis on really

       3       expensive.

       4            Q.   A really, really important reason.  Okay.

       5                 So, so again, to be clear, we're not really

       6       disputing, we're not really, really disputing -- the

       7       fundamental dispute between the parties isn't anything

       8       about Verizon's technical capabilities.  It's about

       9       whether Verizon should be required to modify its

      10       switches to accept higher level trunking directly or,

      11       alternatively, who should pay for the multiplexing and

      12       demultiplexing that needs to occur to get down to

      13       Verizon's DS1 level.

      14            A.   That's my understanding, yes.

      15            Q.   Okay.  Let's talk about the pay question for a

      16       minute.  Do you have any understanding of the term that

      17       appears sometimes in the industry called the transport

      18       and termination of traffic?

      19            A.   I've heard the term.

      20            Q.   But that's not something you're familiar with?

      21            A.   I wouldn't say -- I'm not prepared to kind of

      22       get into all of the details.  I just understand it at

      23       kind of a general level.

      24            Q.   Okay.  And at a general level would you agree

      25       with me that when two local exchange carriers are
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       1       interconnected, transport refers to the process of

       2       getting the traffic from that point of interconnection

       3       to the end office where, where it's going and then

       4       termination refers to getting it to the customer served

       5       by that end office?

       6            A.   I wouldn't even say that I distinguish the

       7       two.  I just kind of lump them all together to say --

       8       the relationship that I've always had is reciprocal

       9       compensation is associated with the transport and

      10       termination.

      11            Q.   Okay.

      12            A.   As far as what's actually transport or what's

      13       termination or what, you know, the different piece

      14       parts, I would just be speculating on that.

      15            Q.   Would it surprise you to learn that the FCC

      16       has separately defined what interconnection is and what

      17       transport is and what termination is?

      18            A.   I don't know that they have.  I can't say that

      19       I would be surprised or not surprised.

      20            Q.   But whatever it is the FCC has done, when the

      21       Commission makes its ruling, it should follow what the

      22       FCC has done on those points?

      23            A.   Again, that specifically sounds like, you

      24       know, a legal question.

      25            Q.   That's fair enough.  I'll withdraw it.  I have
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       1       nothing further for this witness.

       2                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.

       3                 Staff?

       4                 MS. BROOKS:  Staff has no questions.

       5                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Commissioners?

       6                 Redirect?

       7                 MR. O'ROARK:  No redirect, Madam Chair.

       8                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Thank you,

       9       Mr. Vasington (sic.).  Appreciate that.

      10                 MR. SAVAGE:  Mr. D'Amico.

      11                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I'm sorry.  We got you

      13       wrong again.  We're just going to call everybody

      14       somebody different today.

      15                 MR. O'ROARK:  I'm sorry, Madam Chair.  Now

      16       I've got you doing it.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  You got me doing it.

      18       That's okay.

      19                 Mr. D'Amico, thank you very much.

      20                 MR. SAVAGE:  And you're not going to call

      21       Mr. Vasington?

      22                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I guess we want him

      23       back.

      24                 (Laughter.)

      25                 Okay.  Mr. William Munsell, welcome.

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       566

       1                          WILLIAM E. MUNSELL

       2       was called as a witness on behalf of Verizon Florida,

       3       LLC, and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

       4                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

       5       BY MR. HAGA:

       6            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Munsell.  Have you been

       7       previously sworn?

       8            A.   I have.

       9            Q.   And could you state your name and position,

      10       please?

      11            A.   William E. Munsell.  I'm a Senior Consultant

      12       in the policy and planning side of Verizon dealing with

      13       interconnecting with CLECs primarily.

      14            Q.   And are you the same William Munsell that

      15       caused to be prepared direct testimony on March 26th,

      16       2010, in this proceeding?

      17            A.   I am.  I am.

      18            Q.   And did you also cause to be prepared and

      19       filed rebuttal testimony in this proceeding on

      20       April 16th, 2010?

      21            A.   Yes.

      22            Q.   And, Mr. Munsell, do you have any additions,

      23       corrections or changes to your testimony?

      24            A.   I do.

      25            Q.   And what are those?
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       1            A.   On my direct testimony -- I'm sorry.  That's

       2       my rebuttal testimony.  Page 5 --

       3            Q.   This is your rebuttal testimony?

       4            A.   Yes.  Rebuttal testimony, Page 5, Line 25, the

       5       last sentence should read, "Its proposed language says

       6       nothing to the contrary."  The word "the" was missing.

       7                 The next change again is in my rebuttal

       8       testimony.  Page 37, Line 19, the last word on Line 19

       9       is "is," I-S, is, and that should be stricken so that

      10       the next sentence reads, "This practice is the industry

      11       practice in such situations," and so forth and so on.

      12                 Again on my rebuttal testimony, Page 47, Line

      13       19 begins with the word "the."  It should be stricken so

      14       that the sentence reads, "GNAPs ultimately never was

      15       able to provide those details, and Verizon and GNAPS did

      16       not implement the originating carrier approach."  Those

      17       are my changes.

      18            Q.   Okay.  And subject to those changes, if I

      19       asked you the same questions that appear in here, would

      20       you provide the same answers?

      21            A.   Yes.

      22                 MR. HAGA:  Okay.  Subject to

      23       cross-examination, I'd like to insert the direct and

      24       rebuttal testimony of Mr. Munsell into the record as if

      25       read.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Yes.  Thank you.  Sorry.

       2

       3

       4

       5

       6

       7
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       1       BY MR. HAGA:

       2            Q.   And, Mr. Munsell, have you prepared a summary

       3       of your testimony?

       4            A.   I have.

       5            Q.   Could you please provide that?

       6            A.   I will.

       7                 Thank you very much for this opportunity.

       8       Bright House has been extremely successful under the

       9       existing interconnection agreement in place since 2005.

      10       That agreement has enabled Bright House Cable, the only

      11       customer of the Bright House Network Company in the

      12       arbitration here, to become Verizon's chief competitor,

      13       capturing a significant portion of the residential

      14       market.  So the existing arrangements have worked as

      15       Congress intended.  Bright House owns most of its own

      16       facilities, but Bright House and Verizon need to

      17       interconnect their networks so that Verizon's customers

      18       and Bright House Cable's customers can call one another.

      19                 In the new agreement, however, Bright House is

      20       trying to use interconnection with Verizon as a way to

      21       shift Bright House costs to Verizon, its main rival, and

      22       to gain a unique, competitive advantage over other

      23       providers as well.  The Commission should reject Bright

      24       House's novel positions.

      25                 My testimony addresses five of the remaining
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       1       issues, Issues 7, 13, 36, 37 and 41.  Of these issues,

       2       36 and 37 are the most critical because accepting Bright

       3       House positions on these issues has potential

       4       consequences for Florida's telecommunications markets

       5       that reach far beyond the agreement under arbitration.

       6                 Issue 36 involves access toll connecting

       7       trunks that Bright House today orders from Verizon's

       8       special access tariff in order to link third party long

       9       distance carriers with Bright House's network.  These

      10       trunks are not for the exchange of traffic between

      11       Bright House's and Verizon's customers.  They are used

      12       only for Bright House Cable's customers to send and

      13       receive long distance calls from third parties.  This

      14       traffic is and always has been referred to as meet point

      15       billing traffic.

      16                 Under Issue 36, Bright House has come up with

      17       a novel theory to try to avoid paying Bright -- from

      18       paying Verizon for these tariffed special access

      19       facilities, leaving Verizon instead to bear the

      20       responsibility for these facilities used only for Bright

      21       House's traffic and that have nothing to do with

      22       interconnecting Bright House's and Verizon's networks.

      23                 What's more, Bright House does not even need

      24       to use these facilities to gain -- to get meet point

      25       traffic to and from long distance carriers.  It could
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       1       simply send and receive this traffic through the

       2       collocation it maintains at the Verizon tandem.

       3                 Bright House has admitted that it's

       4       considering changing its network configuration to do so.

       5       So while Bright House can't avoid the charges it's

       6       complaining about, and a decision adopting Bright

       7       House's position might well be mute as to Bright House,

       8       that decision would have substantial real world effects

       9       on Verizon because all of the other carriers that buy

      10       the same kind of facilities will rely on it to stop

      11       paying Verizon for them.  Bright House's position has no

      12       legal support, as Verizon's lawyers will explain in the

      13       briefs, and deserves no consideration from a policy

      14       standpoint either.

      15                 Another aspect of Issue 36 involves Bright

      16       House's proposal that it claims is designed to allow it

      17       to operate as a competitive tandem provider.  Verizon

      18       has no objection to Bright House operating as a

      19       competitive tandem provider and, indeed, Bright House

      20       already has the ability to operate as a competitive

      21       tandem provider under the tandem switch signaling

      22       service available under Verizon's tariff.  Bright

      23       House's proposed language therefore is unnecessary as

      24       well as problematic from billing perspectives.

      25                 Issue 37 centers on how the parties will
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       1       define what constitutes local traffic that is subject to

       2       reciprocal compensation rates and what constitutes

       3       interexchange traffic that is subject to the higher

       4       access rates.  Under the existing agreement, the parties

       5       have looked to the ILECs' Commission-approved local

       6       exchange areas to determine what is local and what is

       7       interexchange for purposes of intercarrier compensation

       8       at the wholesale level.  This is an appropriate standard

       9       because it provides a noble, uniform standard that can

      10       be, that can be applied easily and consistently.  Bright

      11       House, however, proposes a change, arguing that the

      12       standard should be based on how the originating party

      13       has defined its local calling area for retail service.

      14                 But because other CLECs might adopt this

      15       agreement and those CLECs have different retail calling

      16       areas, basing the definition on the originating carrier

      17       would mean that the definition varies from carrier to

      18       carrier.  Operationally it would not be feasible for

      19       Verizon to maintain tables for each originating CLEC

      20       that might adopt this ICA, especially when many CLECs

      21       like Bright House do not file tariffs.

      22                 From a policy perspective, Bright House's

      23       proposal, if adopted, would initiate nothing less than a

      24       fundamental restructuring of the access regime in

      25       Florida.  Be it Bright House -- Bright House's approach
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       1       would allow Bright House and CLECs adopting the

       2       agreement on relying on the decision here to eliminate

       3       interstate (phonetic) access charges for themselves.  At

       4       the same --

       5                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Munsell, you've run

       6       out of time.

       7                 THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.

       8                 MR. HAGA:  And Mr. Munsell is available for

       9       cross.

      10                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Savage.

      11                 Let me, let me just ask this of staff.  With

      12       the previous witness we did not have to enter because

      13       that was part of -- or an exhibit that was already

      14       entered; right?  Okay.  Thank you.  Sorry, Mr. Savage.

      15       Go right ahead.

      16                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      17       BY MR. SAVAGE:

      18            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Munsell.

      19            A.   Good afternoon.

      20            Q.   I want to start with the Issue 36, competitive

      21       tandem provider stuff, because between your testimony in

      22       the deposition and your opening statement, I am

      23       literally confused about precisely what Verizon's

      24       position is.  So let me lay out a scenario and tell me

      25       if you agree with me.  Actually -- well, I'll leave the
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       1       chart.

       2                 The scenario I'd like you to think about is

       3       Bright House using its switch in its network to provide

       4       a service to interexchange carriers who have traffic to

       5       deliver to Verizon's customers, and the scenario that

       6       we've been calling in the shorthand is a competitive

       7       tandem provider.  We would like to be able to offer to

       8       IXCs the ability to come to our tandem instead of

       9       Verizon's tandems and have our network get that traffic

      10       out to Verizon's end offices for delivery to Verizon's

      11       customers.  Do you understand the scenario I'm asking

      12       you to talk about?

      13            A.   I do.

      14            Q.   Okay.  I'm going to hope we can do this

      15       quickly.  Am I correct that Verizon's position is that

      16       Bright House can absolutely do that today using your

      17       tandem switch signaling tariff that you referred to?

      18            A.   Yes.

      19            Q.   Okay.  So that if hypothetically we could

      20       offer better service, cheaper rates, redundancy,

      21       anything that might be of interest to IXCs in order to

      22       get their traffic to your customers, to come through us

      23       first rather than your tandem, we're allowed to do that

      24       under your tariff?

      25            A.   Yes.  The traffic could be both directions.
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       1            Q.   Okay.  And you would agree with me that there

       2       are certain aspects of your prefiled testimony that

       3       might give the impression that you would be opposed to

       4       us doing that.

       5            A.   Under my prefiled testimony I was under the

       6       impression that you were trying to get that traffic not

       7       on the facilities ordered under the TSS tariff, but on

       8       the local interconnection facilities.

       9            Q.   Okay.  So just to be clear, trying to narrow

      10       where we might disagree, you're okay with us doing it.

      11       We would just have to have separate facilities other

      12       than the local interconnection facilities to do it.

      13            A.   Correct.

      14            Q.   Okay.  And let me be even more specific.  Do

      15       you mean separate facilities, physical facilities, or do

      16       you mean separate trunks?

      17            A.   The tariff provides that you would order

      18       Feature Group D trunks.  So it would be trunks.

      19            Q.   Okay.  Now would you agree with me that your

      20       tariff contains provisions with respect to meet point

      21       billing when Verizon provides the tandem functionality

      22       and then the traffic is handed off to Bright House or

      23       another carrier for termination?

      24            A.   I'd have to see the specific section of the

      25       tariff that you're talking about.
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       1            Q.   It was Section 2.7 of Tariff 14 that we

       2       discussed in your deposition.

       3            A.   If you have a copy of it, that would --

       4            Q.   Give me a second.

       5            A.   Thank you.

       6            Q.   Well, I mean, just to move things along, would

       7       you accept today, subject to check, that Section 2.7 of

       8       your tariff, FCC 14, deals with meet point billing where

       9       Verizon itself provides the tandem functionality?

      10            A.   I could accept that.

      11            Q.   Now notwithstanding the fact that that topic

      12       is addressed in your tariff, nonetheless in the

      13       interconnection agreement, there are various provisions

      14       in the agreement that lay out things like how you divide

      15       the, the, establish a billing percentage and those sorts

      16       of things included in the interconnection agreement,

      17       even though they're also to some extent in the tariff.

      18            A.   They are in the interconnection agreement.

      19            Q.   And also to some extent in the tariff?

      20            A.   You'll have to show me the tariff.  Sorry.

      21            Q.   Okay.  But if I am correct that these things

      22       are addressed both in your tariff and the

      23       interconnection agreement, would you have any objection

      24       to including in our interconnection agreement provisions

      25       that clarify or restate or emphasize Bright House's
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       1       right to provide this terminating tandem service?

       2            A.   I believe that we would be agreeable to

       3       include in the interconnection agreement a reference to

       4       the FCC Tariff 14, Section, whichever it is that's the

       5       TSS section, that says Bright House can order that

       6       service from Verizon and whatever, you know, whatever

       7       words went around it.

       8            Q.   Okay.  That, with that, I think we can

       9       probably leave this part of Issue 36.

      10                 Would you agree with me that a local exchange

      11       carrier provides, may provide services not only to end

      12       users but also to long distance carriers?

      13            A.   Can you ask me that again?

      14            Q.   Well, for example, Verizon, Verizon has end

      15       user customers, of course.

      16            A.   Correct.

      17            Q.   Verizon also has customers that are

      18       interexchange carriers that buy its access services.

      19            A.   Correct.

      20            Q.   Okay.  Now in your opening statement you said

      21       that Bright House Network's -- that its, its only

      22       customer was this, the Bright House Cable that's the

      23       interconnected VoIP provider.  Do you recall saying

      24       that?

      25            A.   Yes.
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       1            Q.   Would you agree with me that Bright House also

       2       has as customers interexchange carriers to whom it

       3       provides originating and terminating exchange access?

       4            A.   I have heard that testimony today.  Of course

       5       I have no direct knowledge that they do.

       6            Q.   Well, assuming the testimony today, that I

       7       think in this regard is uncontested, were to be accepted

       8       that Verizon, that Bright House has direct connections

       9       to some interexchange carriers and provides meet point

      10       billing type service to other interexchange carriers

      11       through the famous chart we've been discussing, if that

      12       testimony is actually true, would you not agree with me

      13       that Bright House, in addition to the wholesale customer

      14       for purposes of the end users, also has as customers

      15       interexchange carriers?

      16            A.   I'm afraid you asked me -- your end user

      17       customers were wholesale?

      18            Q.   Forget everything I just said.

      19            A.   Thank you.

      20            Q.   Would you agree with me that, that Bright

      21       House has, among its other customers, interexchange

      22       carriers as customers?

      23            A.   As does Verizon.  Yes.

      24            Q.   Yes.  And many, many local exchange carriers

      25       have IXCs as customers.
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       1            A.   To the extent that they send and receive long

       2       distance traffic, meet point billing traffic, I would

       3       agree with that.

       4            Q.   So when you said earlier that the only

       5       customer that Bright House has is its interconnected

       6       VoIP cable affiliate, you just weren't thinking about

       7       the IXCs as customers at that time?

       8            A.   I was focused on the retail side of the

       9       business.

      10            Q.   Okay.  Now you'd agree with me -- well, would

      11       you agree with me that the Communications Act defines a

      12       local exchange carrier as an entity that provides either

      13       telephone exchange service or exchange access?

      14            A.   I imagine that it defined it.  So are you

      15       asking me to agree that there is a definition of it in

      16       there?

      17            Q.   You'll agree that the definition -- that there

      18       is a definition, but you don't know what it is?

      19            A.   That's right.

      20            Q.   Okay.  All right.  With respect to Issue

      21       Number 37, which is the local calling area issue, one of

      22       your objections to Bright House's proposal is that if

      23       the proposal were adopted in this case and then if a

      24       bunch of other CLECs were to adopt that agreement, then

      25       Verizon might have a problem with a bunch of CLECs with
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       1       different local calling areas all trying to have things

       2       work under this new proposal.

       3            A.   That is one, one aspect of the objection.

       4            Q.   Right.  And I want to focus on that aspect,

       5       knowing that -- at least based on your testimony, you

       6       have many -- but focusing on that.  Let's start with

       7       Bright House itself and let's suppose that we're not yet

       8       worried about what the other CLECs might or might not

       9       do.  You understand that Bright House itself has a

      10       LATA-wide, all calls within the LATA in the Tampa area

      11       would be local?

      12            A.   My understanding is that it is at least the

      13       LATA.

      14            Q.   Right.  And so as between Bright House and

      15       Verizon, you would agree with me that there would be no

      16       ambiguity or confusion whatsoever with regard to how to

      17       bill the traffic we send you; right?

      18            A.   From a definitional perspective, no.  From an

      19       operational perspective, there might not be any

      20       ambiguity, but I don't know how we would do it.

      21            Q.   You don't know how you would not bill us

      22       access?

      23            A.   It isn't as simple as Mr. Gates has

      24       represented that it's a simple table change.  It isn't.

      25            Q.   Well, I guess I'm trying to understand what
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       1       the complications that are fairly prominent in your

       2       testimony, what these supposed complications are.  Now

       3       we talked in your deposition about the fact that when

       4       you normally jurisdictionalize traffic, which I admit is

       5       a horrible word, but you normally divide it between

       6       whether it's local, interstate or intrastate based on

       7       comparing the originating and terminating phone numbers.

       8            A.   Correct.

       9            Q.   Okay.  And in the case of Bright House and

      10       Verizon, again, looking at us alone, what would you need

      11       to know other than that it's coming from one of our

      12       numbers and going to one of your numbers to know that it

      13       goes into the local bucket?

      14            A.   The way that it is done today, the way Verizon

      15       set it up since the Act, is you compare the telephone

      16       numbers, you go to a Telcordia database to get the rate

      17       centers that are associated with those telephone

      18       numbers.  Then you go to the Verizon retail local

      19       calling area table that's used to rate local traffic

      20       from Verizon end users, and that's the table that's used

      21       to determine whether or not those two telephone numbers

      22       of the call that the CLEC has sent us are local or

      23       whether they're not local.  If they're not local, is it

      24       intrastate, intraLATA access or is it some other

      25       jurisdiction of access.  That's the only table that
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       1       we've got as a reference point.

       2            Q.   And it would be really, really hard to modify

       3       that table to reflect traffic coming in from Bright

       4       House should simply all be rated as local?

       5            A.   Well, it wouldn't be modifying that table.

       6       Then we would have to set up a different process that

       7       says for Bright House traffic, forget everything you

       8       have done for 14 years, we've just built a new table,

       9       and now take that traffic and jurisdictionalize it

      10       against the new table.  I can't say I'm an IT person.  I

      11       can definitely say I'm not an IT person, but I was in

      12       the requirement sessions 14 years ago when we built

      13       this, and I have talked with the IT department about

      14       this.  They have told me this would be difficult.

      15            Q.   Really, really difficult?

      16            A.   Yes.

      17            Q.   Okay.  Would you agree with me that the

      18       industry has experience over the years with receiving

      19       traffic that for one reason or another can't be properly

      20       jurisdictionalized based on looking at the originating

      21       and terminating numbers?

      22            A.   Well, there's certainly experience in the

      23       industry for 800 traffic, which you can't

      24       jurisdictionalize because an 800 number is not assigned

      25       to any jurisdiction.  There is also a fairly prevalent
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       1       amount of traffic comes that we terminate or a CLEC

       2       terminates where the originating number is not present,

       3       either it was never signaled or is stripped.  Maybe it

       4       was changed.  Sometimes it's just an invalid number.

       5       Again, you can't jurisdictionalize the traffic.

       6       Wireless traffic is another example because of wireless

       7       roaming.  For many carriers for wireless accounts you

       8       can't jurisdictionalize the traffic.

       9            Q.   And would you agree that if for whatever

      10       reason the originating and terminating number data is

      11       not sufficient to decide how to bill traffic, the

      12       fallback position is to simply establish a factor that

      13       applies to traffic coming in?

      14            A.   Yes, to the extent that you cannot

      15       jurisdictionalize the traffic based on those criteria,

      16       the originating number being present, the terminating

      17       number should be valid if it's a terminating call.  800

      18       is always a factor, but to the extent you can't

      19       jurisdictionalize that traffic or that -- what typically

      20       happens today is 95 percent of the traffic comes in, and

      21       you can jurisdictionalize it on a terminating call.  For

      22       the five percent that comes in that you can't

      23       jurisdictionalize based on the originating and

      24       terminating number, you do rely on factors.

      25            Q.   And the use of factors to handle traffic that
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       1       can't be -- let's just say properly rated, I'm tired of

       2       saying jurisdictionized, the use of factors to handle

       3       traffic that can't be properly rated based on the

       4       originating and terminating numbers goes back at least

       5       as far as 1984 and the original access tariffs?

       6            A.   Correct.

       7                 MR. SAVAGE:  I have nothing further for this

       8       witness.

       9                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.  Staff.

      10                 MS. BROOKS:  Staff has no questions.

      11                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Commissioners.  Okay.

      12                 Mr. O'Roark, when you're ready.

      13                 MR. HAGA:  No redirect for this witness.  I'm

      14       sorry.

      15                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Thank you very

      16       much.

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      18                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Munsell.  I wanted

      19       to make sure we got it right.

      20                 MR. SAVAGE:  Your Honor, I know that we are

      21       officially done.  I just wanted to make sure,

      22       Commissioners, that both of our witnesses are still

      23       here, so if in the course of Verizon's case any

      24       questions arose that you really wanted to ask our folks

      25       they are right here.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  That we really, really

       2       wanted to ask.

       3                 MR. SAVAGE:  That you really, really wanted to

       4       ask them.

       5                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I don't see any

       6       questions.  Commissioner Skop?  No.

       7                 Any other matters?  Time frames?

       8                 MS. BROOKS:  Staff would just like to go ahead

       9       and highlight the significant dates.

      10                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Yes.

      11                 MS. BROOKS:  The transcript is due on

      12       June 11th.  The briefs will be due July 9th and reply

      13       briefs will be due on July 30th.

      14                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  With that -- do

      15       we have all the exhibits entered?  Are we on target with

      16       everything, Mr. O'Roark, Mr. Savage?

      17                 MS. BROOKS:  Yes, they have moved all of their

      18       exhibits into the record.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

      19                 MR. O'ROARK:  It never hurts to make sure,

      20       Madam Chair.  I think that they are all in.  I believe

      21       that we just added Exhibits 22 and 23.

      22                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Yes.  Is that correct,

      23       staff?

      24                 MS. BROOKS:  Yes, 22 and 23 from staff's

      25       understanding have been moved into the record.
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       1                 MR. SAVAGE:  And the only exhibit I used was

       2       an excerpt from something that was already in the

       3       record.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  And we have established

       5       that has already been entered.

       6                 MR. O'ROARK:  So we are in good shape.

       7                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Thank you very

       8       much.  We're adjourned.

       9                 (The hearing concluded at 3:10 p.m.)
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